
2019 SENATE HUMAN SERVICES 
 

SB 2291 

  



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Human Services Committee 
Red River Room, State Capitol 

SB 2291 
1/21/2019 

Job # 31083 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Justin Velez 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to creation of a trauma-informed practices working group; to provide for a report to 
the legislative management.; to provide and appropriation; and to provide an expiration date. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments 

 
 Vice Chairman Larsen: Opens the hearing on SB 2291 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Introduces SB 2291 and gives a brief description.  
 
(04:45-00:00) Anna Frissell, Executive Director of the Red River Children’s Advocacy 
Center. Testifying in favor of SB 2291. Testimony is as follows.  
 
Anna Frissell: We have the unique mission of serving kids that are the victims of sexual 
abuse, physical abuse, neglect, and exploitation. We provide a wide array of services. One of 
those is opening the door to mental health services. We have the gift of have Dr. Nicola 
Herting and Dr. Anna Schimmelpfennig, they both do assessments and either provide 
therapies or refer kids to therapy depending on where the kids are from. We serve a large 
geographic area that includes a lot of rural communities and those communities don’t have 
the resources that we have in urban areas. The network that is in front of this committee today 
and funding it I think is imperative to continue to get the kids the right therapists and the right 
treatment in the areas that the live. What this network does is gives someone who is doing 
referrals out to these areas an opportunity to see what kinds of treatments these therapists 
specialize in. When we do assessments of kids we have an opportunity to do the assessment, 
establish what kind of treatment, and find a therapist in their area. It’s an amazing tool to have 
this network in ND. We are here today in support of this bill to tell you this makes a huge 
difference to the kids that we see. They all have the opportunity to get help from a therapist 
in their area.  
 
(8:18-9:26) Teresa Larsen, Director of the Protection and Advocacy Project. Testifying 
in favor of SB 2291. Testimony is as follows.  
 
Teresa Larsen: As we receive reports of abuse/neglect and if they concern children we have 
to refer to CPS (Child Protection Services) first but a lot of times they don’t actually do an 
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investigation so they come back to us. We see a lot of children where there are trauma issues 
in their background. In advocacy cases we see this as well. I think that bringing a network 
together so that everybody is on the same page and having screening is incredibly important. 
We are very much in favor of this and appreciate that we will try to get the work done in a 
four-year timeline. That gives us a goal versus a never ending group. Thank you.   
 
Senator O. Larsen: What is this going to do that isn’t being done now. Is there a gap? 
 
Teresa Larsen: Yes, the first thing that comes to mind is that the screenings aren’t being 
done so children and adults aren’t being identified to benefit from trauma informed care. There 
are over 200 people in the network that are able to provide trauma informed care as 
therapists, but I’m not sure that’s all been integrated into the system. This will significantly 
help make implementation of trauma informed care a more intricate part of the system.  
 
(10:45-11:13) Steve Riser, Social Service Director for Dakota Central Social Services 
and also a member of the North Dakota Association of County Social Services Director 
of North Dakota. Testifying in favor of SB 2291. Testimony is as follows.  
 
Steve Riser: I wanted to stand before you today to say that we support this bill and we would 
also have a request. We would like you to consider putting on a county social service director 
as a member of your team.  
 
Senator Anderson: What will this accomplish that your organization can’t accomplish now? 
 
Steve Riser: Right now there aren’t anybody (in my county) trained to do trauma screenings. 
If we became a part of this team we could encourage training among our staff and especially 
child protection staff and we could make educated referrals to providers that can do this type 
of therapy.  
 
(12:18-14:00) Linda Reinicke, Program Consultant for Prevent Child Abuse North 
Dakota. Testifying in favor of SB 2291. Testimony is as follows.  
 
Linda Reinicke: In my previous life my field was child care. When trauma causes stress it 
impacts brain development. The brain is the only organ that is not fully developed when born. 
We rely on external and healthy nutrition experiences to give us strong and healthy brains 
while helps cement positive behavior as we grow up. When trauma impacts that there is a 
domino effect far into life, so strengthening this trauma network and the ability to identify 
children with trauma at an early age will impact years of expenses and economics and heart 
aches for people who have suffered trauma. Prevent child abuse ND fully supports this and 
encourages the strengthening of this network.  
 
Madam Chair Lee:  The more one learns about trauma the more important you realize how 
important it is. We just have to prevent it in order to step in earlier on with families that are 
struggling and with the idea of wrapping them with services to help them 
 
Linda Reinicke: We have been working with a couple of tribal reservations and have a home 
visiting program to go in and work with new families. One of the tribal staff persons had a 
beautiful analogy of what protective factors do for infants. What she does is she brings in 
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about six or seven blankets and then puts a dolly in the middle, then she talks to each parent 
on how important it is to hold and rock your child. While she is doing that she is putting on 
one blanket that’s a protective factor that we have, it’s so important to feed your baby well 
and when they are hungry, then she’s wrapping another layer and so on and so on. Not once 
does she say it’s so important to show flashcards to your children because that’s not what it’s 
all about. Brain development is all these protective factors that we wrap around our children 
constantly and when trauma comes along it pulls off that blanket. Hopefully the parents and 
the extended family have wrapped that baby in enough of those protective blankets that 
trauma can be mitigated and if that isn’t happening then that’s not the case. There's prevention 
of trauma in the first place and prevention of more significant trauma that as a child grows.   
 
Madam Chair Lee: Part of it is neglect as well. I have a friend with adoptive grandchildren 
two of them they are brothers both adults now and out of high school. They have had a lifetime 
of issues because of attachment disorder. Any tool that we can find to help those families. 
These young men have a lifetime of challenges ahead of them because of someone not being 
there to protect them when they were growing up.  
 
Linda Reinicke: They may have had nurture from the people caring for them. When we are 
talking about aces there is so much that has to do with epigenetics and not what happened 
to those babies but what happened to the parents and the grandparents of those babies still 
is impacting them. We want to deal with trauma so that again from the work with the tribal, it 
was a poster that was so much impact because there was a woman who was pregnant and 
inside her womb you could see the baby and inside the baby you could see the eggs of the 
baby’s baby. The image is it will go on and on until we stop it.  
 
(19:20-23:04) Doctor Lisa Peterson, Clinical Director of Department of Corrections. 
Offering neutral testimony on SB 2291. Testimony is as follows.  
 
Lisa Peterson: I want to talk about the link between trauma and the people in the criminal 
justice system. We know what happens when we experience trauma our brains are actually 
changed. What occurs, for many of us who haven’t had significant trauma if the door slammed 
we could take a step back and say “hmm, the door slammed I wonder why?”, for someone 
who has had significant trauma and when they hear the door slam their brain is going to go 
into flight or fight. The brain is in a state of hyper arousal. What we see when that’s the case 
are those high risk behaviors that wind up people with my system, like substance use and 
aggressive behavior. It’s very important for us that we move down this path towards trauma 
informed systems. I think if we are ever going to make a difference on some of those behaviors 
and really reduce involvement in our criminal justice system and the impact that it has. We 
need to get to the bottom of trauma and to stop those intergenerational patterns. We also 
know that the HSRI (Human Services Research Institute) recommendation speaks 
specifically to trauma training in staff and law enforcement. We do train staff in trauma 
informed ways of interacting with our clients. What we are not great at is helping staff manage 
their own trauma and so what we sometimes see is that when a client is triggered a staff 
member can also be triggered and the situation escalates. I think we see that in prison and 
we see that in our communities. That’s the direction forward for us to better be able to help 
staff manage their own anxiety and own fear. We are also looking at clinical staff training and 
program development both for men and women in the criminal justice system. We know the 
vast majority we serve have had a high number of adverse child hood experiences or adult 
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traumatic experiences and that’s even more true for women. We will move forward with this. 
What I think this will do is help us do this with more cohesion across state government and 
more knowledge of the best way to move forward. We are extremely lucky in ND to have well 
renowned experts in trauma.  
 
Senator Hogan: Would you describe the trauma network and what’s been done with trauma 
over the past years? 
 
Lisa Peterson: I’m not the foremost expert on this but I know Dr. Steve Wonderlich has been 
a key person in moving this forward. I know there is a network of clinicians who have specific 
trauma informed training and trauma focused cognitive behavioral therapy and particularly in 
other trauma informed methods as well. I think over the past 4-5 years our knowledge of how 
to apply those therapies have increased significantly. The research base for those therapies 
have increased and our awareness.  
 
Senator Hogan: We begun a base but this formalizing the base and expanding it into 
infrastructure. Is that how you see this? 
 
Lisa Peterson: Absolutely.   
 
(25:00-29:55) Pam Sagness, Division Director of the Behavioral Health Division for the 
Department of Human Services: I’d like to expand on the question Senator Hogan just 
asked. One of the key things and I’ll keep this brief but I am willing to come back and answer 
further technical questions. We actually started trauma informed work approximately a 
decade ago. This is not a proposal for something new as much as it is a proposal for 
identifying and solving the problems that we have come upon over the last 10 years. The 
behavioral health division adopted trauma informed care as one of our key values. We have 
been doing a lot of work internally within our department to recognize the needs for 
recognizing trauma. I do think it’s important that trauma is broader than specifically abuse and 
neglect. It’s important to think about the traumatic things that can happen to not just a child 
but adults as well. One of the biggest issues we have had is that we received funding originally 
through a grant to create a trauma informed system of care and train clinicians. When you 
heard Dr. Peterson mention earlier working with Dr. Wonderlich and the NRI (Neuro 
Psychiatric Research Institute) we actually funded that initiative and created this collaborative 
which is the Treatment Collaborative for Traumatized Youth. That is a network of several 
hundred clinicians who are specially trained in the treatment of children that have experienced 
trauma. What has been the barrier is although we have created that system we did not create 
referral to those clinicians. We have clinicians in our state currently who are specially trained 
to treat children with this type of trauma and yet there is no referral source. One of the benefits 
of a working group would be to work through some of those issues. We are at a point where 
we need to take action. This past year we have had great partnership from Corey Peterson 
and the County Social Services Directors in really addressing on how do we get this to move 
forward? We have several counties that have begun trauma screening, juvenile court has 
implemented trauma screenings into their work as well but it’s not across all systems yet. Our 
goal would be to address things across systems and make connections. It’s great to the work 
that Dr. Peterson is doing in the prison and with the corrections population but we would want 
to connect that with the services being provided to the families and all of the children that are 
also outside of that criminal justice system. Pam Sagness walks the committee through the 
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bill and notes that the funding goes directly to NRI and they provide training to the clinicians 
and ongoing case consultation with those clinicians.  
 
Senator Anderson: Steve Risers suggestion do feel that its already included? 
 
Ms. Sagness: When I read section one it appeared that the behavioral health director would 
be allowed to include additional participants and I would happy to include additional 
participants and I would be more than happy, it would be a great inclusion.  
 
Madam Chair lee: so we need to add both of those.  
 
Ms. Sagness: I believe the language already allows me to include them but if you would want 
to be specifically naming those entities we would support that.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Closes the hearing on SB 2291.  
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(01:53) Madam Chair Lee: How about the trauma-informed practices SB 2291. The only 
additional comment on this was Mr. Riser talking about adding a social services director.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I think Pam Sagness addressed that and said this was just setting the 
floor of who has to be on the committee but she has the discretion to add people and that 
was kind of at the top of her list there.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Correct. I just wanted to raise that as the only mark I have about any 
kind on amendments on that one. It was also mentioned that this was accidentally removed 
from the budget so they would like to see it return because it was an error on their part. Any 
discussion from the committee on SB 2291? 
 
Senator K. Roers: I move a DO PASS, REREFER TO APPROPRIATIONS. 
Seconded by Senator Clemens 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Is there any further discussion? 
 
Senator Anderson: Maybe this is a good time for me to make my speech on one of these 
bills but this is kind of unique for this session in that these bills come to us and they have 
appropriations on them and the governor’s office through his agencies have been very helpful 
in helping us integrate whatever is in the bills and the appropriations into their budget. That 
is different than I have ever seen in my four sessions. I did actually stop in and thanked the 
governor the other day for letting his administrative agencies work so closely with us because 
all governors haven’t done that.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I think both sides have worked pretty hard particularly with DHS. We 
have let them know that we want to know what they think and the same with the other lobbyist.  
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Senator O. Larsen: I was just wondering how this works with the whole restructuring. Is this 
another piece that we are going to through in there? I want to get the restructuring part 
together then maybe bring this in later. That’s kind of where I’m at with it.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: They did mention that this one was accidently removed so does that 
make you a little more comfortable.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: My feel with this piece as I was looking at it over the weekend and 
listening to all of the restructure that is happening, people’s jobs, and people’s duties and 
what we want to do. I’m more for a wait and see with this one, my priority is with the other bill 
with the restructure and the zones and all of that.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Incidentally about that, I had asked Alex (Senate Human Services Intern) 
to go through and just do a summary of the sections of SB 2124, leaving out the sections 
that just say human services instead of social services, more of a break down per section so 
we can have a better feeling about how it flows.  
 
Senator Hogan: To respond to Senator O. Larsen, I think the other thing that is happening 
with restructuring that I feel fits with is like the redesigning of child protection assessments 
and this sets some of the standards for the new program redesign. I think that this in some 
ways fits hand in hand and they could use this as they use the program redesign and in some 
way would helpful to have. I don’t want to do a program redesign in two years from now 
saying now we have to add this on top of it. If we do it at the same time it might actually be 
helpful. The talk about the trauma screening for adults and children has been on the table for 
a long time, they are restructuring that whole child protection assessment piece and this gives 
them direction for how to do it. Even though this administrative structure, from a program 
design I think this sets the standard for much of what we want to do.   
 
Madam Chair Lee: The program is already there; this is just moving it forward.  
 
Senator Hogan: And begin to integrate it into the new things.  
 
Senator Clemens: I know I seconded this motion, but then I got to looking at my notes and 
I saw there was testimony asking that we consider county social services having a rep on 
that work group is that anything we wanted to discuss as an amendment? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Well, we did mention it at the very beginning of this conversation and 
Pam Sagness had noted that the director of the behavioral health division has the authority 
to appoint anyone she wants. 
 
Senator Anderson: I think Steve Riser was comfortable that Pam Sagness heard that they 
would like to be involved and im thinking that they will be one of the first additional ones that 
they pick so, I wouldn’t worry about that.  
 
Senator K. Roers: Pam Sagness said that my top two are these two and your one of them.  
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Madam Chair Lee: The other things is if we find for some reason that there is somebody 
that we inadvertently left out and that we want to specifically include, that’s what you’ll be 
back here two years from now to talk about it again.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I want to echo some part of Senator O. Larsen’s concerns. I do feel like 
im struggling to understand if there is supposed to be this one big budget, why we have so 
many extra bills that have money in them. It’s hard to see how it fits in the big picture and so 
it does feel a little more disjointed than I thought this was supposed to go. It’s hard to feel like 
this isn’t them trying to go through the back door.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: They were all given direction to meet certain reduction in costs and FTE’s 
and in order for them to get to the most basic of things, somethings had to be left out. That’s 
what they had to do to meet the criteria of the governor’s budget.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I get that, but there's a part of me that says then you’re not actually 
meeting his requests.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: No, they met the request. They passed his budget, were going to get if 
they did what he asked. Collectively we have the ability to assemble information to decide 
whether or not that is adequate.  
 
Senator Anderson: When you look at the list that is mentioned there, part of the reason for 
having people on that list is to tell them that you want them to participate so that they have 
to step up with their choice of appointees. Your people are outside and want to participate. 
Secondly, they mention they have the optional adjustment requests in the budget. Part of this 
is to help appropriations decide what is the health committees for those optional adjustment 
requests, if they are going to do any of them. By us contributing our say to this particular 
adjustment request it gives the appropriations committee an excuse to add that in but not 
others that we may have not acted on.  
 
Senator Hogan: For those of us who have been involved in the trauma informed network 
that has been around for six years. It’s really just been section 4 that has been in existence 
and literally it was inadvertent in the budget. They truly just discovered it was an accident 
and they needed to find a way and they thought it was a way to broaden the whole trauma-
informed in a much bigger way so that the rest of the bill which doesn’t have any cost is big. 
The other thing that I like about this bill is the fact that it’s a 4-year limit. It’s unusual to start 
a system of care saying in 4 years it should fully implemented and we shouldn’t need to exist 
anymore. I don’t see that very often and I kind of like that.  
 
Senator K. Roers: In regards to what Senator Anderson was just saying, I think that one of 
the things that would help is that I feel like when we do this one bill at a time I look at it and I 
go well yeah, but I don’t feel like I could verbalize to the appropriations committee in a 
prioritized list of this list of things that aren’t in this initial budget what should get funding and 
what shouldn’t.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: The problem is that with the time that we have and the structure that we 
have it is really hard for us to do that. That’s is kind of what they are doing and the good news 
is that they are talking to us about it and we can talk to them about it. They have I think is 49 
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OAR’s this year and they are all never going to go through but that’s something the 
department felt was important enough to put on an optional adjustment request list. Any of 
those that we can help move forward to appropriations, there will be some continued 
evaluation. There will be other changes that come about and other discussions we will be 
having about where some of this stuff comes and goes to.  
 
Senator Hogan: Many of those OAR’s are cross-referenced with these, and the overlaps 
are all the interface of that. It’s kind of hard to track, but there is a methodology to that, and 
the green sheet is very helpful. 
 
Madam Chair Lee: The green sheet is that tells what the provisions in the appropriations 
budget are and what it should cost. The matrix which shows the governor’s budget and what 
2012 has and then over this way are all the topics and then other and whether or not it’s in 
one or two bills, so we have got to find a time to sit down and review the chart that legislative 
council did for us. We will move forward with the vote  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN  
5 YEA, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT 
Senator Hogan will carry SB 2291 to the floor.  
 
Madam Chair Lee ends the discussion on SB 2291 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 50-06 of the North Century 
Code, relating to creation of a trauma-informed practices working group; to provide for a 
report to the legislative management; to provide an appropriation; and to provide an 
expiration date.  
 

Minutes:                                                 1. Testimony of Senator Kathy Hogan  
2. Testimony of Anna Frissell  
3. Testimony from Pam Sagness, Treatment 

Collaborative for Traumatized Youth  

 
Chairman Holmberg: Called the Committee back to order on SB 2291 at 10:15am in the 
Harvest Room. All committee members were present. Brady Larson, Legislative Council and 
Becky J. Keller, OMB were also present.  
 
Senator Kathy Hogan, District 21, Fargo: Testified in favor of SB 2291 and submitted 
Attachment # 1 which explains that this bill is to establish a four-year initiative to integrate the 
use of trauma-informed practices to publically funded systems of care of adults and children.  
The Human Services committee recommends a DO Pass.   
 
Chairman Holmberg: A question that came to mind, why is the first section only effective 
for 4 years?  
 
(4:51) Senator Hogan: Great question. The reason is we want to try to integrate this model 
into every system so that the work group won’t have to exist anymore. States that have done 
this, in 4 years it becomes the stand of practice. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: I enjoyed your commentary about your district.   
 
Senator Hogan: We also have the lowest household median income in the state. People 
don’t understand that the heart of Fargo is that poor. We have a lot of students and a lot of 
single households.  
 
Senator Mathern: Folks have been teaching this for 10 years. What has been the resistance 
to it becoming mainstream practice?  Is there something else around the corner that will beat 
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this out too? What’s your sense of the history and why do we need a bill for this when it 
seems so obvious? 
 
Senator Hogan: We have 200 trained trauma informed professionals, both public and 
private. But integrating them into with the school counselors, education activities, in health 
care and emergency rooms; there has not been a coordinated effort to expand that base. 
The second step hasn’t happened in 10 years, so we think we need a formal structure to try 
to implement that. That’s why this is the only cost in this bill, the rest will be networking.   
 
(7:52) Senator Dever:  Since you mentioned the $200,000 appropriation was inadvertently 
left out of the budget, would you prefer we delete this bill and put that in the DHS budget?   
She said that would be fine with her & her committee.  
The other question is, you mentioned PTSD for veterans returning home. We are not doing 
enough. I don’t see the Department of Veterans Affairs as part of the working group?  
 
Senator Hogan: It wasn’t pointed out to us, but we would encourage you to add them. We 
had lots of interest of people wanting to be on this working group. We are more than open to 
that.   
 
Chairman Holmberg: Anyone else? This is another one of those bills that will go to the 
subcommittee for SB 2012.  
 
(9:47) Anna Frissel, Executive Director of Red River Children’s Advocacy Center:  
Testified in favor of SB 2291 and provided Attachment # 2, a statement supporting the 
passing of this bill. 
 
(15:00) Pam Sagness, Director of Behavioral Health Division, DHS:  Testified in favor of 
SB 2291 and provided Attachment # 3, entitled the Treatment Collaborative of Traumatized 
Youth (TCTY). We ask the question why we need to focus for 4 years?  One key thing is 
we’ve been working for the last 10 to advance the awareness for the need. We have 
partnerships and we are ready. I don’t think any resistance is actually resistance. But lack of 
access to appropriate training. Our request is to bring everyone to the table to have 
conversations about our systemic issues. One example, although we have trained 
specialists, we have some that have never received a referral for a client. We aren’t 
screening. We have trained professionals; some haven’t got any referrals for that service. 
We needed to engage partners like county social services. We have provided a training in 
Burleigh Co. and they have now begun trauma screens as part of their general practice. With 
the “Why 4 years”? because once these practices are embedded, they are sustained. There 
are several different layers. There is the highly intense specialized TFCBT for clinicians. We 
also provided training for addictions counselors, who may not be the specialist but come in 
contact daily with people who would benefit from that service. On the back of the flyer, you’ll 
see we trained this year an additional 491 individuals in the state. A large majority are social 
workers, addiction counselors, people who come in contact with individuals who need that 
specialized service. We want to bridge the gap. We’ve built the readiness; we’ve built the 
website. We need to develop a systemic approach so screenings are happening. We’ve 
discussed these things with ND CARES efforts, how to make these available for everyone 
including veterans.  
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(18:45) Senator Mathern: Are you saying this will all happen without this appropriation? And 
if so, why didn’t it change in the Human Services committee? 
 
Pam Sagness: I don’t believe it can happen without the appropriation. We are implementing 
strategies that are sustainable, but they aren’t implemented yet. This money was in our 
budget previously, there was an error in our division. The line item didn’t transfer into the full 
budget. The funding for the website and specialty training, that was funded. If we don’t have 
access to that contract and expertise, we can’t go do the trainings, screenings and 
implementing the rest of the systemic approach. It is vital that the appropriations would 
maintain for the term of this 4 years. 
 
(19:54) Senator Dever: I appreciate your acknowledgement of the situation with veterans. 
After I asked about including the Department of Veteran Affairs, it occurred to me the National 
Guard might be a better place. They have professionals that deal with these kinds of issues 
too. Whether we amend it into the bill, or I see you have the authority toad them apart from 
the bill. 
 
Pam Sagness: The bill does allow me to add additional members. I want to acknowledge, in 
the policy committee, the county Social Services Directors also stepped forward and said 
they would like to be included. I agree. We should have all of them included. This bill allows 
us the discretion to add many partners.  
 
(21:13) Lisa Peterson, Clinical Director with the Dept. of Corrections and Rehabiltation: 
Testified in favor of SB 2291. I want to talk about how trauma impacts the brain. Gave an 
example, where for these people, even a door slam can sound like a gun shot or a reminder 
of violence. It can cause that person to go into fight or flight. When that happens again and 
again, the person lives with a high level of anxiety. Often folks will turn to substance use or 
impulsive behavior. I think to speak to Senator Mathern’s question about barrier, I see a 
tendency to focus on just the resulting behavior, and not the root cause, why that happened 
to begin with. The nature of PTS is to avoid triggers or reminders. It takes a highly skilled 
clinician to build a trusting relationship. We have a huge number of people in our system with 
things from their childhood or even trauma as adults. It is very important to us to continue on 
this path.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: We will close the hearing SB  2291.   
Subcommittee: Senator Dever, Chair, Senator Erbele and Senator Mathern.   
 
Brady is working on a couple scenarios on state employees, that will be shared with you 
hopefully Tuesday. We will talk about it on Wednesday. Which assists LC in putting together 
the budget status report, which is due Thursday.  
 
 
    



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2291  
2/14/2019 

JOB 32810  
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk:  Alice Delzer  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A  Do Pass as Amended on SB 2291 (during the subcommittee hearing on SB 2012)  
 

Minutes:                                                 1.Proposed Amendment  

 
Pam Sagness, DHS submitted Attachment # 1 proposed Amendment. Pam explained the 
amendment.  
 
Discussion followed.    
 
Senator Mathern: I would move the amendment.  2nd by Senator Erbele.  
 
A Roll Call vote was taken.  Yea:3; Nay: 0;  Absent: 0. 
 
Senator Mathern: Moved a Do Pass as Amended.  2nd by Senator Erbele.  
 
A Roll Call vote was taken.  Yea: 3; Nay: 0; Absent: 0.        
 
Vote (11) 
Senator Mathern: I move that we the $200,000 into 2012   that we took out of 2291.    
2nd by Senator Erbele.   into the budget. 
A Roll Call vote was taken.  Yea:  3; Nay: 0; Absent:  0.  Motion carried.  
 
The discussion was closed on SB 2291 and continued on SB 2012.       
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Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2291  
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JOB # 32831  
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk:   Alice Delzer  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 A BILL for DHS regarding the creation of a trauma-informed practices working group (Do 
Pass as Amended.)  
 

Minutes:                                                 1.Amendment # 19.0308.02002  

 
Chairman Holmberg: called the Committee to order on SB 2291. All committee members 
were present. Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council and Becky Deichert, OMB were also 
present.  
 
Senator Dever: Moved Attachment # 1. Amendment # 19.0308.02002 and explained that 
it moves the appropriation. 2nd by Senator Mathern.  A voice vote was done.  It carried.    
 
Senator Dever: Moved a Do Pass as Amended on SB 2291.  2nd by Senator Mathern.  
 
Chairman Holmberg:  Call the roll on a Do Pass as Amended on SB 2291.  
 
A Roll Call vote was taken.  Yea: 14; Nay: 0; Absent: 0.  This goes back to Human 
Services.  
 
 Senator Hogan from Human Services will carry the bill.  
 
 The hearing was closed on 2291.         



19.0308.02002 
Title.03000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Dever 

February 14, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2291 

Page 1, line 3, remove "to provide an appropriation;" 

Page 2, remove lines 26 through 30 

Page 3, line 1, replace "Section 1 of this" with "This" 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment removes the appropriation from the bill. 

Page No. 1 19.0308.02002 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
February 15, 2019 12:18PM 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_30_020 
Carrier: Hogan 

Insert LC: 19.0308.02002 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2291: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2291 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 3, remove "to provide an appropriation;" 

Page 2, remove lines 26 through 30 

Page 3, line 1, replace "Section 1 of this" with "This" 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment removes the appropriation from the bill. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_30_020 
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2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Human Services Committee 
Fort Union Room, State Capitol 

SB 2291 
3/5/2019 

Job # 33213 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Nicole Klaman                            By: Carmen Hickle  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
Relating to creation of a trauma-informed practices working group; to provide for 
a report to the legislative management; and to provide an expiration date. 
 

Minutes:                                                 1,2,3 

 
Chairman Weisz: Opened the hearing on SB 2291.  
 
Sen. Kathy Hogan, District 21:  Introduced SB 2291, see attachment 1.  This bill would 
establish a four-year initiative to integrate the use of trauma-informed practices to publicly 
funded systems of care for adults and children. 
(0:06:33) 
 
Pam Sagness, Director of Behavioral Health Division of the Dept. of Human Services.  
See attachment 2, she read her testimony.  The Department adopted trauma-informed work 
as a key principal in 2015. 0:10:22 
 
Rep. Skroch: I didn’t see any fiscal note, will there be any additional cost with this? 
 
Pam Sagness:  There was originally $200,00 appropriations in this bill, that was an error in 
our department. We have had funding for 10 years to maintain this group. The $200,000 that 
was left out of this bill was moved into SB 2012 which is the DHS budget bill. That funding 
would continue the website and the training for the specialized therapists. We do have the 
opportunity to reimbursement participants of the working group through the Mental Health 
Block Grant. One of the goals of the federal Mental Health Block Grant is to get feedback in 
participation and bring together consumers and different agencies.  
 
Dr. Lisa Peterson, Clinical Psychologist of North Dakota Department of Corrections 
and Rehabilitation:  See written testimony attachment 3, she read her testimony. Creating 
a trauma-informed system of care is essential to helping people feel safe, resolve previous 
trauma, and implement adaptive coping strategies. 
 
Rep Rohr:  What is the census of this program now?  Do we have a lot of children in it 
currently? 
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Dr. Lisa Peterson:  I do not know and not certain if we could get data specifically around 
that. The treatment for traumatized youth is a network for private Practioners who serve 
children with traumatic experiences who have specialized training.    
 
Rep. Devlin: Is there a fiscal note for the Department of Corrections?   
 
Dr. Lisa Peterson:  There is not, it’s worked into our staff training currently and it is 
something we are looking to expend. We would benefit from the fiscal note that is attached 
to the Department of Human Services. 
 
Rep. Devlin: I think it would be helpful for the policy committee to have if not a fiscal note at 
least a note from the Department how much is being put in the budget for this.  
 
Chairman Weisz: We will get that for the committee. No further testimony. Closed the 
hearing on SB 2291.  
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33526 (45:21-52:12) 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk:  Nicole Klaman by Caitlin Fleck     

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
Voting on bill.  
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Weisz: Opened the hearing on SB2291.  
 
Rep Porter: I’m unclear as to who is paying for this?  
 
Chairman Weis: I would assume that it would be in the behavioral health division budget, 
but I’m unclear because it doesn’t have a fiscal note. A lot of these Senate bills they stripped 
out the money and put it into the budget bills. That does become a problem because we may 
pass this as a policy, but because we don’t have the dollar amount, we don’t know if 
appropriations may or may not pass this either.  
 
Rep Schneider: I think they were trying to be more efficient in doing that, and they fully 
funded all of them that they consolidated, so can we get to that some other way?  
 
Chairman Weisz; I can visit with appropriations today and see if we can get some answers 
and then come back to this tomorrow. Maybe it’s intended to be within their current resources. 
I certainly support what they are trying to do here.  
 
Rep Skroch: I have on my notes that there was 200,000 appropriated in error that the funding 
is already in 2012, does that have anything to do with the dollar amount for this?  
 
Chairman Weisz: I will try to get that information. 
 
Meeting closed.   
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Nicole Klaman                            By: Elaine Stromme 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
Relating to creation of a trauma-informed practices working group; to provide for 
a report to the legislative management; and to provide an expiration date. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Weisz: Opened the hearing on SB2291. 
 
Rep. Porter: How is this different than the other bill? 
 
Chairman Weisz: This is just on the trauma end. 
 
Rep. Porter: It has the makeup of the same people; I would rather expand their mission 
rather than have yet another committee that is almost doing the same work as the other one. 
 
Rep. Kiefert: I think that this would be a good place to put the hyperbaric study back into 
play here, and see what Dick thought about that. 
 
Chairman Weisz: We have already taken care of that one. 
 
Rep. Dobervich: The way that I read the bill and going through the testimony again, it sounds 
like this committee, although it is made up of the same people, is not looking at the same 
thing. This is looking at moving all of the systems towards working in a trauma informed way, 
so verses they are not just looking at children, they are looking at veteran services, to 
applying the science behind aces to all of the work that is being done within the departments. 
So, while it is some of the same players, it certainly has a different focus, that would impact 
children as well as all North Dakotans.  
 
Rep. Rohr: Does this partner with SB 2012?  
 
Chairman Weisz: There is $200,000 in 2010 now. Pam please come to the podium.  
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Pam Sagness, Director of Behavioral Health Division of the Department of Human 
Services: There was originally $200,000 that was in this bill, there is not $200,000 in this 
current bill, this bill is new work. It was $200,000 in error from the Behavioral Health Division. 
For the last ten years we have been doing the treatment collaborative for the traumatized 
youth, and that $200,000 is to train clinicians in trauma practices and then maintain a website 
to connect families needing that specialty service. So the $200,000 that was moved from this 
bill into 2012 was because it wasn’t new money with this policy, it actually was an error that 
we made within the Behavioral Health Division.  
 
Chairman Weisz: So you are saying that the $200,000 has nothing to do with this bill? 
 
Pam Sagness: Correct. Other than the topic of Trauma. 
 
Rep. Dobervich: Is there anything that prohibits the Department from doing a working group 
on moving to trauma informed care model verses a committee that would require legislation? 
 
Pam Sagness: This is not a bill requested by the department, this is a bill requested by a 
constituent, of Senator Lee’s. We do believe we can pull together a working group. Just to 
clarify, I think the intent is much broader than just children, because the Department of 
Corrections and Rehabilitation has identified some issues that they could improve on and 
Veterans Affairs, and a lot of the work that we are doing. I do believe that we could pull 
together a group to do some of that work without needing legislative directive to do that.  
 
Chairman Weisz: Thank you Pam. Are there any other questions? 
 
Rep. Rohr: In light of that last enlightenment I will move a Do Not Pass on SB2291. 
 
Rep. M Ruby: Seconded 
 
Chairman Weisz: Motion for a Do Not Pass on SB 2291. The clerk will call the roll. 
 
 A roll call vote was taken: Yes      13      No     0      Absent    1 
 
Do Not Pass Carried 
 
Rep. Fegley: will carry SB 2291  
 
The Meeting was adjourned. 
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Module ID: h_stcomrep_ 49_009 
Carrier: Fegley 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2291, as engrossed: Human Services Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chairman) 

recommends DO NOT PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Engrossed SB 2291 was placed on the Fourteenth order on the calendar. 
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TESTIMONY 

Senate Appropriations Committee 

SB 2291 

January 28, 2019 S 

Senator Kathy Hogan 

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, my 

name is Kathy Hogan, and I represent District 21 the heart of Fargo. 

SB 2291 is a bill to establish a four-year initiative to integrate the use of trauma

informed practices to publicly funded systems of care for adults and children. 

Over the last 25 years, there has been significant changes in the understanding of 

the impact of trauma on the lives of our citizens and their families. 

A. PTSD for veteran's returning home from war, 

B. Children who were victimized by sexual abuse are bruised for life, 

C. A landmark study called ACES looked at the significant increase in the 

life time cost of health care for children based on their number of 

Adverse Childhood Experiences. 

This bill does five things: 

It will develop statewide plan for trauma-informed care through a time

limited (4 year) work group. 

This group would work to integrate trauma informed practices in existing 

systems with all key public and private sector partners. 

This group would work to engage key partners working with vulnerable 

individuals to understand trauma informed practices. 

The bill maintains, the North Dakota Treatment Collaborative for 

Traumatized Youth (TCTY) which disseminates trauma-specific information, 

fl 



provides an ongoing learning community to train and support trauma 

trained professionals, and trains on evidence-based screening and 

treatment in our state. This program has been funded with $200,000 for 

the last 10 years and it was inadvertently left out of the DHS budget. 

The network shall maintain an online directory, connecting individuals and 

families needing specialized trauma services with trained professionals. 

Your Human Services Committee recommends Do Pass on Senate Bill 2291. 
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Chairman and Members of the Committee, 

I am testifying in support of Senate Bill 2291. I am the Executive Director of the Red River 

Children's Advocacy Center where we see hundreds of children every year referred to us for 

allegations of child sexual and physical abuse, neglect and exploitation. 

The children seen at the Center experience trauma from abuse. Child abuse and other forms of 

trauma can have lifelong effects on children, families, and communities. Many studies have 

shown the strong relationship between Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES), which include 

childhood trauma like abuse, and serious outcomes such as post-traumatic stress disorder 

(PTSD), depression, substance use, health problems, and even poverty and early death (Bethell, 

Newacheck, Hawes, Halfon, 2014). These outcomes can be prevented when children receive 

services and support early on. Trauma-specific and evidence-based mental health treatments can 

significantly reduce trauma symptoms and prevent the long-term effects of exposure to trauma. 

However, North Dakota has a shortage of clinicians trained in such treatments and so we need to 

train clinicians to improve access for children and families to heal. There is an incredible need 

the communities we serve and across North Dakota for further education on trauma-informed 

best practices and clinical training on trauma-specific and evidence-based treatment. 

Trauma is also costly to society. In addition to the physical, emotional, and social costs of child 

abuse, it also carries economic costs. The CDC reports the lifetime cost for each victim of child 

abuse is $210,012 and the total lifetime costs of new cases of child abuse each year reaches 

approximately $124 billion (Fang, Brown, Florence, & Mercy, 2012). This is another important 

reason steps need to be taken to continue educating professionals and training clinicians. 

We believe that Senate Bill 2291 is extremely important. There has been much collaborative 

effort specifically over the last decade to address this problem. In particular, the North Dakota 

Treatment Collaborative for Traumatized Youth (TCTY) has worked hard to disseminate 

trauma-specific and evidence-based mental health treatment in our state and maintain a website 

roster of the trained providers. However, training in other treatment models for youth and adults 
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is needed and ongoing support to sustain the network and website roster is critical. To continue 

to improve our state's response, ongoing funding is needed. We are supportive of Senate Bill 

2291 and believe the funding proposed to improve trauma informed practices across North 

5/Ji��I 
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Dakota is vital to ultimately improving access for victims of abuse and trauma thereby reducing 

the negative impact of trauma on victims, their families, and our society as a whole. 

We are supportive of Senate Bill 2291 and the proposed trauma informed practices working 

group and sustaining the network of clinicians. We believe further funding for TCTY is 

absolutely critical to continue the network of clinicians, develop the network, train and educate 

more professionals, and sustain the website roster of trained providers. We depend on TCTY' s 

annual training to advance the training of our clinicians and our community partner clinicians to 

ensure the children served at Red River Children's Advocacy Center have access to adequately 

trained providers. We use the TCTY roster of clinicians daily at our center to ensure traumatized 

children receive treatment from providers trained in trauma-specific and evidence-based 

treatment. The Senate Bill 2291 initiatives are critical to enhancing the dissemination and 

implementation of best practice trauma-informed approaches that ultimately treat individuals 

impacted by trauma across North Dakota. We believe the outcomes of this bill will greatly 

benefit the children and families across the state, especially those served at crisis centers and 

Children's Advocacy Centers. 

Thank you for your support of this critical need in North Dakota. If we can be of any further 

assistance, please contact us. 

Anna Frissell 

Executive Director 

Red River Children's Advocacy Center 

annarrcac@yahoo.com 

701-234-4580 

Nicola Herting, Ph.D. 

Mental Health Director 

Red River Children's Advocacy Center 

mhdirector@rrcac.com 

left 
f :}--; 



NORTH DAKOTA -

BEHAVIORAL 

9� ) J,q I 

J-'J<f,lq tff J 
HEALTH 

.' 

Treatment 
Collaborative for 
Traumatized Youth 
(TCTY) 

TRAUMA-FOCUSED COGNITIVE BEHAVIORAL THERAPY 
(TF-CBT) 

TF-CBT is a clinic-based, individual, short-term treatment that involves individual sessions with the 
child and parent as well as joint parent-child sessions. The goal of TF-CBT is to help address the 
biopsychosocial needs of children, with Posttraumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD) or other problems 
related to traumatic life experiences, and their parents or primary caregivers. 

TF-CBT should be provided to those children who have significant behavioral or emotional problems 
that are related to traumatic life events, even if they do not meet full diagnostic criteria for PTSD. 
Treatment results in improvements in PTSD symptoms as well as in depression, anxiety, behavior 
problems, sexualized behaviors, trauma related shame, interpersonal trust, and social competence. 

TF-CBT has proven to be effective in improving PTSD, depression, anxiety, externalizing behaviors, 
sexualized behaviors, feelings of shame, and mistrust. 
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ACT IV IT I ES/O UTCO M ES 
The Behavio ra l  Hea lth D ivi s i on  has p rovi ded fu nd i ng to the Neuropsych iatr ic Resea rch 
I nst itute (N R I )* to : 
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1 . I m p l ement a n  a n n u a l  Tra u m a -Focu sed Cog n i t ive Behav i o ra l  Therapy (TF-C BT) tra i n i ng to 
c l i n i c i a n s  fro m the  p u b l i c  a n d  p r ivate behav io ra l  hea l th  serv i ce  de l ivery system i n c l u d i ng a 
m i n i m u m  of 6 mon th s  of ca l l s  to p rov i d e  s u p po rt a nd  opportu n i t i es  fo r c l i n i c i a n s  i n  t ra i n i ng to 
staff cases  w i th  o ther  c l i n i c i a n s  who have rece ived the t ra i n i ng .  

0 Al most 1 00 c l i n i c i ans  have been tra i ned i n  TF-CBT across the state 

2 .  M a i n ta i n  the  Trea tment  Co l l a bo rat ive fo r Tra u m at ized Youth (TCTY) webs i te :  www.tcty-nd .o rg . 
C u r rent  i nfo rmat i on  o n  where to fi n d  t ra i ned  c l i n i c i a n s  ca n be fou n d  on  t h i s  webs i te . 

• Center/Agency with TCTY Tra i ned C l i nc ia n(s) 

3 .  Deve l op  a n d  c ondu ct f ive Understanding Traumatic Stress: Implications for Professionals Working 
with Addiction t ra i n i ngs a c ross  the  state .  

0 F ive tra i n i ngs were he ld  fa l l  20 1 8 with attenda nce tota l i ng 49 1 . 

0 324 of the 49 1 part i c ipa nts (66%) com p l eted the eva l uat ion su rvey 
• 27% L icensed Add i ct ion Counse lo rs 
• 5 1  % L icensed Soc i a l  Workers 
• 1 1  % L icensed Cou nse lor  
• 20% Other 

96% of the pa rt i c ipa nts wou l d  recommend the tra i n i ng to others . 

4. Fac i l i tate the  d eve l opment  of a coun ty sc ree n i ng p rocess a nd  c l i n i ca l a ssessment .  

0 Fou r  web-based tra i n i ngs were conducted i n  the summer of  201 8 to educate profess iona l s  on  the use of  
the U n ivers ity of M i nnesota's Trau mat ic Stress Screen fo r Ch i l d ren a nd Ado lescents (TSSCA) . 

, 87 p rofess iona l s  from Bu r le igh County Soc i a l  Services a nd J uven i l e  Cou rt attended the tra i n i ngs. 

*Effective July 1 ,  20 18, the legal name of Neuropsychiatric Research 

Institute was changed to Sanford Research North. 
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Prepared by the Leg islative Counci l  staff for 
Senator Dever 

February 1 4 , 20 1 9  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE B ILL NO. 2291 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  3 ,  remove "to provide an appropriation ; "  

Page 2 ,  remove l i nes 2 6  through 30 

Page 3, l i ne  1 ,  rep lace "Section 1 of this" with "This" 

Renumber accord ing ly 

STATEM ENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment removes the appropriation from the bi l l .  

Page No. 1 1 9.0308.02002 



TESTI MONY 

House Human Services Committee 

SB 2291 

March 5, 2019 

Senator Kathy Hogan 

Chairman Weisz and members of the House Human Services Committee, my 

name is Kathy Hogan, and I represent District 21 the heart of Fargo. 

SB 2291 is a bill to establish a four-year initiative to integrate the use of trauma

informed practices to publicly funded systems of care for adults and children. 

Over the last 25 years, there has been significant changes in the understanding of 

the impact of trauma on the lives of our citizens and their families. 

A. PTSD for veteran's returning home from war, 

B. Children who were victimized by sexual abuse are bruised for life, 

C. A landmark study called ACES looked at the significant increase in the 

life time cost of health care for children based on their number of 

Adverse Childhood Experiences. 

This bill does five things : 

I t  will develop statewide plan for trauma-informed care through a time

limited (4 year) work group. 

This group would work to integrate trauma informed practices in existing 

systems with all key public and private sector partners. 

This group would work to engage key partners working with vulnerable 

individuals to understand trauma informed practices. 

The bill maintains, the North Dakota Treatment Collaborative for 

Traumatized Youth (TCTY) which disseminates trauma-specific information, 
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provides an ongoing learning community to train and support trauma fJ 
trained professionals, and trains on evidence-based screening and 

treatment in our state. 

The network shal l maintain an online directory, connecting individuals and 

families needing specialized trauma services with trained professionals. 

Thank you for your consideration and I am more than willing to answer any 

questions. 

• 
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Engrossed Senate B i l l  229 1 - Department of H uman Services 

House H u man Services Committee 

Representative Robin  Weisz, Chairman 
March 5, 20 1 9 

Cha i rman Weisz and members of the House Human Services Committee , I am 

Pamela Sagness,  D i rector of the Behaviora l  Health Divis ion of the Department of 

H u man Services (Department) . I appear today to provide  testimony i n  support of 

Senate B i l l  229 1 . 

Recommendat ion 9 .8  of the Behaviora l  Hea lth System Study (Apri l  20 1 8) is  to 

ensure a trauma- i nformed system.  A trauma-informed approach rests on the 

fo l lowing key assumptions:  a program ,  organ ization ,  or system that is trauma

i nformed rea l izes the widespread impact of trauma and understands paths for 

recovery; recogn izes the signs and symptoms of trauma i n  c l ients , fam i l ies ,  staff, 

and other  i nvo lved with the system ;  and responds by fu l ly i ntegrat ing knowledge 

about trauma i nto po l ic ies, procedu res, and pract ices ,  and seeks to active ly resist re

traumatization .  

The Department adopted trauma-informed work a s  a key pri nc ip le i n  201 5 .  Senate 

B i l l  229 1 p rovides the opportun ity to bu i ld on  that work by creat ing a trauma

i nformed p ractices working g roup which wi l l  assess and gu ide efforts and establ ish , 

imp lement and ma inta in  a statewide p lan for trauma-informed care .  Th is work is 

essentia l  to ensure trauma-i nformed practices are i nteg rated across systems.  

Senate B i l l  229 1 a lso d i rects the Department to mainta in  a network of  c l in ic ians to 

imp lement ,  eva luate and susta in  the practice of evidence-based menta l hea lth 

treatment for ch i ld ren who have experienced traumatic l ife events .  Currently, the 

Department ma inta ins the Treatment Co l laborative for Traumatized Youth (TCTY), 

f>1 · J 



wh ich is  a network of over 350 cl i n ic ians representing 40 d ifferent agencies across 

the state tra i ned in Trauma Focused Cogn itive Behaviora l  Therapy. 

Th is  conc ludes my testimony, and I am happy to answer any questions .  

2 
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Treatment 
Col laborative for 
Traumatized Youth 
(TCTY) 

TRAU MA- FOCUSED  COG N ITIVE B E HAVI O RAL TH E RAPY 
(TF-CBT) 
TF-CBT is a c l inic-based, individual ,  short-term treatment that involves individual sessions with the 
chi ld and parent as wel l as joint parent-child sessions. The goal of TF-CBT is to help address the 
biopsychosocial needs of chi ldren, with Posttraumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD) or other problems 
related to traumatic l ife experiences, and their parents or primary caregivers .  
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TF-CBT shou ld be provided to those chi ldren who have significant behavioral or emotional prob lems 
that are related to traumatic life events, even if they do not meet ful l diagnostic criteria for PTSD. 
Treatment results in improvements in PTSD symptoms as wel l as in depression, anxiety, behavior 
prob lems, sexualized behaviors, trauma related shame, interpersonal trust, and social competence. 

TF-CBT has proven to be effective in improving PTSD, depression, anxiety, external izing behaviors, 
sexualized behaviors, feelings of shame, and mistrust. 
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3 Atnvi1r1 ES/OUTCO M ES 
n d , J 

The Behavi o ra l  Hea lth D ivi s i on  has p rovi ded  fu nd i ng to the Neu ropsych i at r i c  Resea rch 
r ,  "1 · 1 nst itute (N R l )* to :  

1 . I mplement an  annua l  Tra uma-Focused Cognitive Behaviora l  Thera py (TF-CBT) tra i n i ng to 
c l i n ic ia ns from the pub l i c  and  private behaviora l  hea lth service de l ivery system i nc lud i ng a 
m in imum of 6 months of ca l ls to provide  support and opportun it ies for c l i n i c ians  i n  tra i n i ng to 
staff cases with other c l i n ic ians  who have rece ived the tra i n i ng. 
0 Almost 1 00 c l i n i c i ans have been tra ined i n  TF-CBT across the state 

2 .  Ma inta i n  the Treatment Col laborative for Traumatized Youth (TCTY) website: www.tcty-nd .org. 
Fam i l ies can con nect with tra i ned c l i n ic ians to fi nd services needed for ch i l d ren  at th is  
website. 

• Center/Agency with TCTY Tra i ned C l inc ian(s) 

3 .  Develop and  conduct five Understanding Traumatic Stress: Implications for Professionals Working 
with Addiction tra i n i ngs across the state. 
0 Five tra i n i ngs were held fa l l  201 8 with attendance tota l i ng 49 1 . 

0 324 of the 491 parti c ipants (66%) comp leted the eva l uat ion su rvey 

• 27% were L icensed Add i ct ion Counse lors 
• 5 1  % L icensed Soci a l  Workers 
• 1 1  % L icensed Counse lor  
· 20% Other  

96% of the part ic ipants wou l d  recommend the tra i n i ng to others. 

4. Faci l itate the development of a cou nty screen ing process and c l i n ica l  a ssessment. 
0 Fou r  web-based tra i n i ngs were conducted i n  the summer of 201 8 to educate p rofess iona l s  on  the use of 

the Un iversity of M i nnesota's Trau matic Stress Screen for Ch i l d ren a nd Ado lescents (TSSCA) . 

• 87 profess iona l s  from Bu r le igh County Soc i a l  Services a nd J uven i l e  Court attended the tra i n i ngs. 

0 Six add it iona l  county soc ia l service agenc ies and one school have asked to be tra i ned .  

• 

• 

• 
*Effective July 1, 20 18, the legal name of Neuropsychiatric Research 

Institute was changed to Sanford Research North. 



HOUSE HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 
Representative Robin Weisz, Chairman 

March 5,  201 9 

North Dakota Department of Corrections and Rehabi l itation 
Lisa Peterson ,  PhD,  C l in ical D irector 

Presented Testimony concern ing Senate Bi l l  2291 

For the record, I am Dr. Lisa Peterson, Clinical Director of  the North Dakota Department 
of Corrections and Rehabilitation. I present this testimony in support of SB 229 1 . 

National data suggests that around 7 percent of men in prison and 22 percent of women 
in prison meet criteria for post-traumatic stress disorder (Baranyi, et al. , 201 8) . 
Additionally, people involved with the criminal justice system report Adverse Childhood 
Experiences or ACES at four times the rate of the general population (Reavis, et al . ,  
201 3). Adverse Childhood Experiences are linked to numerous negative health 
outcomes and we know now that childhood trauma, as well as traumatic events that 
occur in adulthood, can actually alter the functioning of the brain. 

For example, if the door slammed in this room right now, most of our brains would be 
able to process that stimulus as safe. We would essentially tell ourselves, in a split 
second, " Hmm, the door slammed. No big deal. " And then we would return to whatever 
it was we were doing. If, however, you are someone who experienced violence in your 
home growing up, a door slam can trigger a very different response. If door slams, for 
you, are associated with feeling unsafe, that noise will trigger a fight or flight response in 
the brain, even though this particular situation is safe. When a person is constantly in 
fight or flight, in a constant state of hypervigilance, and unable to feel safe even in 
innocuous circumstances, it becomes overwhelming. That is when we see behaviors 
that often lead to people being involved with the criminal justice system, like substance 
use in an attempt to cope with this constant anxiety or aggression in attempt to increase 
safety . Creating a trauma-informed system of care is essential to helping people feel 
safe, resolve previous trauma, and implement adaptive coping strategies, which can 
lead to reductions in incarceration and the use of residential and inpatient levels of care. 

I 'm happy to respond to any questions you may have. 
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